
  

 PRESCOTT: THE ARIZONA CENTENNIAL  
 CITY COMMITTEE 
 MEETING OF MONDAY, JULY 19, 2010
 PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT: THE ARIZONA CENTENNIAL 
CITY COMMITTEE, HELD ON MONDAY, JULY 19, 2010, IN THE CITY COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS AT PRESCOTT CITY HALL, 201 SOUTH CORTEZ, PRESCOTT 
ARIZONA 
      
  
 1.  Call to Order  
 
 Chairman Gilliss called the meeting to order at 1:02 p.m. 
 
 MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Gilliss; Deborah Thurston; Elisabeth Ruffner, 

Dave Maurer; Flo Day; Paul Madden; Nancy Burgess; and Councilwoman Lora 
Lopas. 

 
 MEMBERS ABSENT: Sharon Bell; James C.T. Pool; Guy Roginson 
 
II.  Approval of Minutes of June 21, 2010 meeting. 
 
 Member Burgess said that she had a few changes that she would get to Burke, 

but they were not substantive. Minutes were approved by unanimous consent. 
 
III.   Committee Membership 
 
 A.   Introduction of Flo Day 
 
 Chairman Gilliss introduced Flo Day, who provided information about 

herself and her family in Prescott.  Gilliss added that she and Day would 
get together to discuss Committee responsibilities. 

 
 B.   Comptroller  
 
  1.   Job Description 
 
 Gilliss reported that she and Madden had not had an opportunity to 

get together yet, but that they would be meeting to develop a job 
description re Comptroller responsibilities.  She continued that they 
had received the City’s travel policy for review and, based on it, 
would be drafting guidelines and a form for Committee 
reimbursement of travel expenses. 

 
  2.   Fund Raising Group 
 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of July 19, 2010  Page 2 
 
 Madden asked for members’ comments on the possibility of 

creating a fundraising group. Burgess said that she did not see an 
alternative.  She noted that the Committee has the $1,000 originally   
donated but that it would go quickly if it were used for odds and 
ends.  

 
Chairman Gilliss stated that a Fund Raising Committee would be 
under the comptroller’s supervision, as he would be keeping 
records of funds received and expenditures.  Maurer suggested the 
need to recruit more people for fund raising and that such an effort 
would probably be more successful when the Centennial is closer.  
Gilliss noted that the Centennial is closer, that the kickoff is a year 
away and that it is now time to begin preparing for it. 
 
Concerning a need for funds, Gilliss noted that the owner of one of 
the local radio stations told her that they would be happy to give the 
Committee some free air time but that members could not expect a 
lot of time without purchasing some.   
 
Thurston asked if it would be a good idea to write a press release to 
invite volunteers along with putting the request on the City website 
and the Centennial Facebook. Burgess suggested that not much 
response from public appeals could be expected and that 
identifying individuals from outside the committee would be a better 
approach. After a short discussion it was agreed that all committee 
members would identify at least one person willing to serve on a 
fundraising group and to submit the names at the next meeting. 
 
Gilliss reminded the Committee that a list of potential donors had 
been identified and that Bell had volunteered to contact them to 
determine if donor goals matched Centennial Committee needs. 
Bell has not yet reported back with that information, however, and 
Gilliss suggested that the fundraising group might be able to make 
those inquiries.  
 
Maurer added that from the beginning the Committee has 
mentioned a need for money, but uses for it have not identified. 
Day stated that, in her experience, it is best to have well-defined 
goals for recruiting volunteers. Gilliss responded that at present the 
major need is funding for promotion, i.e. to create awareness about 
and generate involvement in the Centennial. Funds would then be 
needed for project support.  
 
The discussion was concluded with Gilliss reminding Committee 
members to bring to the next meeting, or to contact her before then, 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of July 19, 2010  Page 3 
 

with the name of at least one person who would be willing to serve 
on a Centennial Fund Raising group.   
 

IV.   Standing Group Reports 
 
 A.   Community Outreach (Gilliss) 
 
  1.   Responses to Press Release re Best of AZ Festival 
 
   a.   AZCC Meeting Recap [Att-IV.A.1.a] 
  
 Gilliss noted that Karen Churchard had made a report at the 

Committee’s June meeting and that the attachment which 
was circulated with today’s agenda was a recap of her 
comments for the record. 

 
   b.   Press Release [Att-IV.A.1.b] 
  

Gilliss continued that she had submitted a press release to 
the Courier, a copy of which was also circulated with the 
agenda, and that it has generated a number of good 
responses. Several Committee members commented that 
they had received good feedback from it as well.    

 
   c.   Tanya Mock/AZTV 
 

Gilliss reported that, as an example, the press release had 
prompted Tanya Mock to ask her to be on her show on 
July 21 to provide more information about the Centennial. 
Gilliss suggested that it may be time to appear on other radio 
and TV shows as well 
 
Thurston reported that Pop Rocket, a local alternative music 
and entertainment publication, had contacted her requesting 
specific information on Centennial events. She explained 
that detailed information isn’t available yet, and the publisher 
committed to helping he Committee disseminate information 
when it becomes available 

  
  2.  Group Meeting Report 
  

Gilliss reported that when she and Jacque Holladay met to discuss 
the initial e-mailing that had been sent out to apprise groups in the 
community about the Centennial and to solicit interest in 
participating, Jacque had informed her that there had been only a 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of July 19, 2010  Page 4 
 

small response.  Some messages were returned as undeliverable, 
plus a number of groups on the list lacked e-mail addresses. 

 
Gilliss said that they had decided to try to determine the cause for 
rejected messages, obtain missing addresses, shorten the 
message, and include the response form as part of the message 
versus an attachment, then to try again.  The second mailing will go 
out as soon those adjustments are made. 

 
 
 3.   Business Cards 
 
  a.   Progress 
  
 Lopas reported that business cards would be made as soon as the 

logo was available.  It was agreed to go ahead with the logo on the 
printed card before obtaining confirmed registration from the 
Secretary of State, but to avoid using it on the internet until it is 
registered.  Thurston will e-mail the logo to Lopas.  

 
  b.   Community Request 
 

Gilliss  reported that a woman in the community asked for copies of 
the Centennial Committee business cards to help promote the 
Centennial  It was agreed that the cards should be held and 
circulated only by Committee members.  

 
 Lopas suggested that the cards have committee members’ names 

printed on the back and that cards be ordered in small batches so 
they could be updated as needed.  After some discussion on 
whether to include a blank line for each member to sign the front of 
the card, Gilliss agreed to Maurer’s suggestion that the front include 
only the Chairman’s name, with members’ names to be listed on 
the back. 

  
    
 4.   State Meeting re Tourism (Lopas) 
 
 Lopas reported that she had recently attended the Governor’s Conference 

on Tourism in Tucson, and that approximately 40 minutes of the 
conference was spent on Centennial information presented by Karen 
Churchard.  Lopas said that, although much of the presentation centered 
on activities taking place in Phoenix, it also included information 
Churchard has presented to this committee at its June meeting. 

 
 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of July 19, 2010  Page 5 
 

Besides reporting on the Best of Arizona Festivals, noting that Prescott 
was one of the three key cities, Churchard’s presentation included 
information on a state project to be conducted in public schools -- a penny 
drive to raise funds to redo the copper dome on the State Capitol Building.  
Replating has been scheduled for every ten years, but it has been 20 
years since it was last done. 
 
 Churchard also introduced the availability of Transportation Enhancement 
funds from ADOT to restore and replace historical markers, which Lopas 
suggested might be a project the Committee could consider for the 
Prescott area.  Burgess added that there is a website about Arizona 
Historical Markers that has 20 of Prescott’s markers listed, although some 
16 or 17 of them were overlooked. She noted that the inventory includes 
not just state markers, but all types of markers and that she has a list of all 
the ones the City has installed.  Lopas said it was announced that money 
is already available from the State Centennial Committee and that all that 
is required is to identify markers needing restoration or replacement. 

 
 Lopas continued that Legacy projects were also announced at the 

meeting, including two from Prescott, one for the Pioneer Home and one 
for the World’s Oldest Rodeo.  She also reported that AZCC has a website 
that includes “100 Fun and Fascinating Facts about Arizona,” noting that 
the facts must by fully documented and that it is intended that the site be 
refreshed and updated regularly.  Gilliss asked Burgess to identify any 
information on Prescott that could be submitted for the site, and she 
agreed to do so, saying that she would confirm any ideas with Ruffner. 

 
 B.   Legacy Project (Burgess) 
 
  1.   Update 
 
 Burgess reported that the committee has not met, as everyone is 

traveling.  She circulated a list she drafted of 52 topics for articles 
noting that the list must be finalized.  She continued that she has 
reviewed all of the Courier’s “Days Past” articles and identified 
authors with whom she is familiar and who would match some of 
the topics.  Referring to the list of topics, she identified four authors 
and the topics they have agreed to write on:  Andy Wallace, #4; 
Mick Woodcock, #8; Melissa Ruffner, #10; and Dave Maurer, the 
Prescott Chamber.  She added that Mike King has just done a 
chapter on the Prescott National Forest for the County publication.  

 
Burgess continued that she plans to prepare a guideline for authors 
which will explain the need for two separate products:  first, a 1500-
word chapter for a potential book, with no guarantees that the book 
will be published, to include photos, illustrations, maps, etc., and 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of July 19, 2010  Page 6 
 

second, a 750-word column with one illustration for the Courier’s 
special “Days Past: Prescott Where It All Began” column. The 
topics for the two items would be the same, but they would be two 
separate products. Burgess’ author’s guidelines will include 
instructions on how items are to be scanned and submitted. 
 
Burgess asked for any suggestions that Committee members might 
have regarding changing the topics and asked that they be 
submitted to her by the end of the month. She noted that if 
something were to be added, consideration would have to be given 
to what would be deleted. Ruffner said that she would forward 
some suggestions to Burgess.  Burgess stated that the final list of 
topics will be submitted to Committee members electronically 
 
Gilliss added that articles will be presented in the book in 
chronological order insofar as possible.  She stressed that Burgess 
wants to have the chapter topics finalized within the coming month.  
Burgess noted that some chapters may be eliminated if no author 
can be found to write them.  Gilliss asked if writing instructors at the 
colleges were being invited to submit items, and Burgess 
responded that school is not in session at this time. 
 
Burgess reported that Andy Wallace, Jim Pool, Ray Newton and 
herself will review all writing and will edit to some extent, with the 
intention of preserving each author’s “voice” so chapters will not 
sound as though they were all written by the same person.  
 
Burgess encouraged Committee members to give her names and 
contact information for any writers they know who may have an 
interest in contributing to the book. She clarified that articles would 
begin in the Courier in September 2011, with the Centennial kickoff, 
and that the book would be available in February 2012. She 
emphasized that all articles will need to be completed and in proper 
order before beginning publishing.  
 
Gilliss noted that this project was mounted in response to the City 
Resolution requiring the Committee to develop a City Legacy 
Project, and that it must be approved by the Arizona Historical 
Advisory Commission in order to be identified as such. She 
reported that she has attempted unsuccessfully to find out if the 
application submitted by Burgess some time ago will be on the 
agenda for AHAC’s quarterly meeting. Burgess said that the 
application has been received and is in the queue for approval.  
She added that, according to information she has received from 
others who have submitted Legacy Project applications, those 
requiring rewriting or revisions are sent back before they are placed 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of July 19, 2010  Page 7 
 

on the agenda. Not having had the Prescott application returned is 
likely a good sign. 
 

  2.   Funding 
 
 Chairman Gilliss reported that she recently met with the Mayor and 

City Manager and that she reminded Mr. Norwood of the Council’s 
mandate to develop a Legacy Project.  She said she reported on 
the direction and progress of the book project and stated a need for 
between $8,000 and $10,000 to mount the project.  Mr. Norwood 
responded that he would find the money. Burgess said that that 
amount would probably cover the first run of the book and that, as 
books are sold, the money could go back into reprinting. 

 
 C.   Local Projects (Bell) 
 
  1.   Prescott POPS 
  
 Gilliss reported that she has had a number of people tell her they 

have projects in the works. For example, the POPS Symphony 
Orchestra director told her recently that they have scheduled a 
Centennial celebration concert for Sunday, February 12, 2012. In 
addition, the Masons are interested in erecting a historic monument 
of some type, and Mike King with Sunup Rotary is anticipating 
uniting with the other Rotarian groups to mount a Centennial 
project. Gilliss concluded that groups in the community are 
beginning to think about participation in the Centennial.  

 
 Burgess suggested that the Masons might consider purchasing a 

historic marker that would match those the City has been erecting. 
 
  2.   Volunteer Support 
 
   No report. 
 

3. Thumb Butte Festival/Best of AZ Update (Thurston) 
      

Thurston reported that plans for the Festival are being developed 
quickly and that those involved are excited about it.  She circulated 
the draft of a press release intended to inform Committee member 
about the Festival activities. She noted that the three major 
museums will be participating as well and the Elks Opera House, 
Prescott Fine Arts, and other art and performing organizations. 
 
Thurston continued that Karen Churchard is in accord with Thumb 
Butte Festival plans, particularly because it will bring together the 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of July 19, 2010  Page 8 
 

old and the new in many ways; it doesn’t focus on any single 
aspect of the culture of the community; and it is still growing and 
developing, which makes it easier for AZCC to help shape it to 
meet state expectation for next year’s Best of Arizona Festival.   
 
Thurston noted that this year’s festival will be a sort of “dress 
rehearsal” for next year’s Centennial kick-off and that the state’s 
event planner will be attending Thumb Butte Festival planning 
meetings. She added that that Churchard had never been to the 
Sharlot Hall Museum or heard of Tsunami on the Square and that 
the state group was unaware of and pleased about the talent 
already existing in Prescott. 
  
Thurston continued that Churchard asked about the ability to close 
off downtown streets during the Best of AZ Festival. Gilliss noted 
that she mentioned that inquiry to Norwood at their meeting and 
that he did not say no. She continued that, in response to 
Churchard’s suggestion, Ann Sterling had complied with a request 
to provide the state group with a county aerial map of the downtown 
area which they can use as they visit this year’s festival to attempt 
to identify a footprint for the 2011 celebration as well as major 
parking areas  It is intended that shuttle transportation of some type  
will be utilized as well. 
 
Gilliss reported that it had come to the Festival Committee’s 
attention that the Friday of the Best of AZ event, September 16, 
2011, would be a working day for the courts and therefore the 
Plaza would not be readily available for event use, which could 
preclude the Centennial Stamp unveiling from taking place on the 
Plaza that day. She continued that she and Ruffner had determined 
that, if the unveiling of the stamp occurs as originally planned for 
that day on the Plaza, they would seek permission from Presiding 
Judge Brutinel for use of the Plaza during the court’s lunch recess 
from 11:30 am to 1:30 pm. Retired Judge, Ann Sterling, chair of the 
County Centennial Committee, has agreed to assist in that effort. 
 
 Should the USPS agree to the date and the stamp unveiling in 
Prescott, Ruffner agreed to work with Ann Sterling and Frank Sente 
to plan and carry out the event, and to relieve Thurston from having 
responsibility for that part of the Best of Arizona festivities.  
 
Madden asked if any consideration had been given to having the 
stamp unveiling at the Sharlot Hall Museum, and Gilliss responded 
that it had not been discussed but that it was a good idea.  Burgess 
suggested that the ceremony could be held in from of the Territorial 
Governor’s Mansion.  Gilliss agreed to present that idea to Sterling.  



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of July 19, 2010  Page 9 
 

 
Lopas added that, in a conversation with Churchard’s Assistant, 
Mandi Wimmer, the idea of closing off Goodwin would provide for 
easy connectivity between downtown and Sharlot Hall Museum.    

 
 D.  Media/Promotions (Thurston) 
 
  1.   Logo Registration and Use; City Council 
 
 Gilliss reported that the application for registration of the new City 

Centennial logo had been on City Attorney Garry Kidd’s desk for 
some time, but that Burke has taken it over and it should be 
completed and submitted soon. It was agreed that the new logo 
design did not need to go back to Council for approval. 

 
  2.   County Web Site [Att-IV.D.2] 
  
 Gilliss said that the County’s website has some fun activities and 

that she would like to see a City Centennial site up and running 
soon, and to include on it a link to the County’s site. She asked for 
suggestions on information that could be posted on a City site that 
would be of interest to the public. Burgess suggested that the book 
project could be featured, and Thurston said that when the press 
release draft was completed, it could also be posted.  

 
  Gilliss stated that she would still like to see the Committee have its 

own website, separate from the City’s, and Lopas said that a 
separate web site could be developed, but that the City did not 
have the staff to maintain it. Thurston said that the 
Media/Promotion Group is supposed to be responsible for a web 
site, but that the group has not been meeting.  Maurer stated that 
the Prescott Chamber has several web designers as members and 
that perhaps the Chamber could ask for the donation of a web-
master’s time to develop and manage a City Centennial site.  He 
said he would check with chamber members who might be willing 
to help. 

 
  3.   Social Media/Facebook Update 
 

A brief discussion was held on the committee’s Facebook page. 
Thurston reported that it is set up so that only administrators can 
post on it, however Gilliss said she has seen several references on 
the site inviting people to post for various reasons.  She continued 
to describe several aspects of the site which suggested to her that 
it is not currently a satisfactory resource for Centennial information.  
She suggested that the site be disabled until it can be better 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of July 19, 2010  Page 10 
 

planned and monitored. Thurston said that she would check with 
Mary Lin who had developed the site, to see if she would disable it 
or if Thurston could to it herself. 

 
  4.   Radio/TV Appearances 
 
 Gilliss suggested that it would be a good time to engage in radio 

and TV appearances to stimulate community interest in 
participating in the Centennial.  After brief discussion Gilliss agreed 
to contact local stations to schedule appearances. 

 
 Gilliss reported that Churchard would forward state guidelines on 

merchandising to the Committee as soon as they were complete.   
Lopas offered to follow up with Dawn Foster regarding any City 
policies. 

 
 E.   Executive Committee (Gilliss) 
 
  1.   AZCC Summit Meetings 
 
 Gilliss reported that the Summit Meeting scheduled for Flagstaff 

had been cancelled due to the forest fire. It will be rescheduled for 
sometime in September. Meantime, there will be a Summit Meeting 
in Tucson in August. 

 
  2.   Potential Sponsors (Bell) 
    
   No report. 
 
  3.   Meeting with Mayor and City Manager, and 
  4.   Centennial Committee Role 
 
 Gilliss reported that during her meeting with the Mayor and City 

Manager, they also agreed on the need to discuss the relationship 
of the Centennial Committee to the newly-established City 
Department of Tourism.  She continued that she suggested that the 
Tourism Department should take the lead in planning and carrying 
out the City Centennial Celebration as the City has the staff, 
resources, and decision-making power to conduct it.  She said that 
Norwood responded that the idea made sense because it is “all 
tourism.” and the Mayor indicated that he thought it was a good 
idea.  

 
 Gilliss continued that she had also chatted with Don Prince at his 

Meet-and-Greet event about such a shift.  He has served previously 
as Deputy Director of the State Office of Tourism, which she sees 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of July 19, 2010  Page 11 
 

as a perfect tie-in with the City Centennial, since the OOT is 
directing Centennial Activities.  She also learned that he knows 
Karen Churchard, although he didn’t work with her. Gilliss  reported 
that she called to the attention of Mr. Prince and Mayor Kuykendall 
that the City Centennial Committee, having been working on the 
Centennial for some time, could serve as an excellent support 
group for Department of Tourism as it directed Centennial activities, 
to which they seemed to agree. 

 
 Ruffner stated that City decision-makers must remember that 

Prescott is supported by residents who sometimes feel displaced 
by tourism; they do not want it to destroy what they have.  Gilliss 
agreed, adding that she has recently read the book, “Civic Tourism” 
written by local author Dan Shilling and published by Sharlot Hall 
Museum Press, which addresses those issues. She said that she 
delivered the two-page introduction to the book to the Mayor 
suggesting that he might  be interested in reading the entire book 
and that she had a dozen copies of it set aside in her name at 
Sharlot Hall Museum to be available to the City.  Ruffner noted that 
the book is achieving national attention and that Shilling is currently 
making presentations on its contents all over the country. 

 
V.   Ad Hoc Group Reports 
 
 A.   Stamp Group 
 
 Gilliss reported that she had met David Smucker, new Superintendent for 

Prescott Unified School District, and chatted with him about the Centennial 
Stamp project being planned for County-wide schools, including PUSD.  
She said that he was very interested and supportive. 

 
 

Gillis continued that she had learned that Frank Sente is willing to assist 
with the stamp unveiling but was no longer planning to be part of the 
school portion of the project.  Ruffner clarified that Sente does not intend 
to be part of the school project committee, but that his is writing an 
application to the Arizona Historic Advisory Commission for a Legacy 
Project and to the State Centennial Commission to be have the unveiling 
recognized as a Special Event, and he will assist with development of a 
curriculum packet for the school project.  Gilliss expressed her gratitude 
for Sente’s willingness to continue participation in the Stamp events 
 

 B.   Other 
 

Ruffner reported that she was working with Frank Sente on a Special 
Event for the 107th anniversary of the Elks Opera House in February 2012. 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of July 19, 2010  Page 12 
 

 
 Thurston reported that Bob Booker from the Arizona Commission on the 

Arts would be attending a PAAHC membership event on September 1 at 
5:30 pm at the Smoki Museum, to speak on the subject of Cultural 
Tourism. 

 
VI.   Advisory Member Comments 
 
 No Advisory Members were present. 
 
VII.   Adjournment 
 
 There being no further business, the regular meeting of the Prescott: The Arizona 

Centennial City Committee of July 19, 2010, adjourned at 2:44 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
       ________________________________  
       DR. BARBARA GILLISS, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________  
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee


Meeting of July 19, 2010

Page 8




PRESCOTT: THE ARIZONA CENTENNIAL 



CITY COMMITTEE



MEETING OF MONDAY, JULY 19, 2010
PRESCOTT, ARIZONA


MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT: THE ARIZONA CENTENNIAL CITY COMMITTEE, HELD ON MONDAY, JULY 19, 2010, IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS AT PRESCOTT CITY HALL, 201 SOUTH CORTEZ, PRESCOTT ARIZONA

 1. 
Call to Order 


Chairman Gilliss called the meeting to order at 1:02 p.m.



MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Gilliss; Deborah Thurston; Elisabeth Ruffner, Dave Maurer; Flo Day; Paul Madden; Nancy Burgess; and Councilwoman Lora Lopas.



MEMBERS ABSENT: Sharon Bell; James C.T. Pool; Guy Roginson

II. 
Approval of Minutes of June 21, 2010 meeting.



Member Burgess said that she had a few changes that she would get to Burke, but they were not substantive. Minutes were approved by unanimous consent.


III.  
Committee Membership



A.  
Introduction of Flo Day



Chairman Gilliss introduced Flo Day, who provided information about herself and her family in Prescott.  Gilliss added that she and Day would get together to discuss Committee responsibilities.


B.  
Comptroller 



1.  
Job Description


Gilliss reported that she and Madden had not had an opportunity to get together yet, but that they would be meeting to develop a job description re Comptroller responsibilities.  She continued that they had received the City’s travel policy for review and, based on it, would be drafting guidelines and a form for Committee reimbursement of travel expenses.



2.  
Fund Raising Group



Madden asked for members’ comments on the possibility of creating a fundraising group. Burgess said that she did not see an alternative.  She noted that the Committee has the $1,000 originally   donated but that it would go quickly if it were used for odds and ends. 

Chairman Gilliss stated that a Fund Raising Committee would be under the comptroller’s supervision, as he would be keeping records of funds received and expenditures.  Maurer suggested the need to recruit more people for fund raising and that such an effort would probably be more successful when the Centennial is closer.  Gilliss noted that the Centennial is closer, that the kickoff is a year away and that it is now time to begin preparing for it.

Concerning a need for funds, Gilliss noted that the owner of one of the local radio stations told her that they would be happy to give the Committee some free air time but that members could not expect a lot of time without purchasing some.  

Thurston asked if it would be a good idea to write a press release to invite volunteers along with putting the request on the City website and the Centennial Facebook. Burgess suggested that not much response from public appeals could be expected and that identifying individuals from outside the committee would be a better approach. After a short discussion it was agreed that all committee members would identify at least one person willing to serve on a fundraising group and to submit the names at the next meeting.

Gilliss reminded the Committee that a list of potential donors had been identified and that Bell had volunteered to contact them to determine if donor goals matched Centennial Committee needs. Bell has not yet reported back with that information, however, and Gilliss suggested that the fundraising group might be able to make those inquiries. 

Maurer added that from the beginning the Committee has mentioned a need for money, but uses for it have not identified. Day stated that, in her experience, it is best to have well-defined goals for recruiting volunteers. Gilliss responded that at present the major need is funding for promotion, i.e. to create awareness about and generate involvement in the Centennial. Funds would then be needed for project support. 


The discussion was concluded with Gilliss reminding Committee members to bring to the next meeting, or to contact her before then, with the name of at least one person who would be willing to serve on a Centennial Fund Raising group.  

IV.  
Standing Group Reports



A.  
Community Outreach (Gilliss)




1.  
Responses to Press Release re Best of AZ Festival





a.  
AZCC Meeting Recap [Att-IV.A.1.a]



Gilliss noted that Karen Churchard had made a report at the Committee’s June meeting and that the attachment which was circulated with today’s agenda was a recap of her comments for the record.




b.  
Press Release [Att-IV.A.1.b]


Gilliss continued that she had submitted a press release to the Courier, a copy of which was also circulated with the agenda, and that it has generated a number of good responses. Several Committee members commented that they had received good feedback from it as well. 







c.  
Tanya Mock/AZTV


Gilliss reported that, as an example, the press release had prompted Tanya Mock to ask her to be on her show on July 21 to provide more information about the Centennial. Gilliss suggested that it may be time to appear on other radio and TV shows as well


Thurston reported that Pop Rocket, a local alternative music and entertainment publication, had contacted her requesting specific information on Centennial events. She explained that detailed information isn’t available yet, and the publisher committed to helping he Committee disseminate information when it becomes available



2. 
Group Meeting Report


Gilliss reported that when she and Jacque Holladay met to discuss the initial e-mailing that had been sent out to apprise groups in the community about the Centennial and to solicit interest in participating, Jacque had informed her that there had been only a small response.  Some messages were returned as undeliverable, plus a number of groups on the list lacked e-mail addresses.


Gilliss said that they had decided to try to determine the cause for rejected messages, obtain missing addresses, shorten the message, and include the response form as part of the message versus an attachment, then to try again.  The second mailing will go out as soon those adjustments are made.


3.  
Business Cards




a.  
Progress


Lopas reported that business cards would be made as soon as the logo was available.  It was agreed to go ahead with the logo on the printed card before obtaining confirmed registration from the Secretary of State, but to avoid using it on the internet until it is registered.  Thurston will e-mail the logo to Lopas. 



b.  
Community Request


Gilliss  reported that a woman in the community asked for copies of the Centennial Committee business cards to help promote the Centennial  It was agreed that the cards should be held and circulated only by Committee members. 


Lopas suggested that the cards have committee members’ names printed on the back and that cards be ordered in small batches so they could be updated as needed.  After some discussion on whether to include a blank line for each member to sign the front of the card, Gilliss agreed to Maurer’s suggestion that the front include only the Chairman’s name, with members’ names to be listed on the back.


4.  
State Meeting re Tourism (Lopas)



Lopas reported that she had recently attended the Governor’s Conference on Tourism in Tucson, and that approximately 40 minutes of the conference was spent on Centennial information presented by Karen Churchard.  Lopas said that, although much of the presentation centered on activities taking place in Phoenix, it also included information Churchard has presented to this committee at its June meeting.

Besides reporting on the Best of Arizona Festivals, noting that Prescott was one of the three key cities, Churchard’s presentation included information on a state project to be conducted in public schools -- a penny drive to raise funds to redo the copper dome on the State Capitol Building.  Replating has been scheduled for every ten years, but it has been 20 years since it was last done.


 Churchard also introduced the availability of Transportation Enhancement funds from ADOT to restore and replace historical markers, which Lopas suggested might be a project the Committee could consider for the Prescott area.  Burgess added that there is a website about Arizona Historical Markers that has 20 of Prescott’s markers listed, although some 16 or 17 of them were overlooked. She noted that the inventory includes not just state markers, but all types of markers and that she has a list of all the ones the City has installed.  Lopas said it was announced that money is already available from the State Centennial Committee and that all that is required is to identify markers needing restoration or replacement.


Lopas continued that Legacy projects were also announced at the meeting, including two from Prescott, one for the Pioneer Home and one for the World’s Oldest Rodeo.  She also reported that AZCC has a website that includes “100 Fun and Fascinating Facts about Arizona,” noting that the facts must by fully documented and that it is intended that the site be refreshed and updated regularly.  Gilliss asked Burgess to identify any information on Prescott that could be submitted for the site, and she agreed to do so, saying that she would confirm any ideas with Ruffner.


B.  
Legacy Project (Burgess)




1.  
Update



Burgess reported that the committee has not met, as everyone is traveling.  She circulated a list she drafted of 52 topics for articles noting that the list must be finalized.  She continued that she has reviewed all of the Courier’s “Days Past” articles and identified authors with whom she is familiar and who would match some of the topics.  Referring to the list of topics, she identified four authors and the topics they have agreed to write on:  Andy Wallace, #4; Mick Woodcock, #8; Melissa Ruffner, #10; and Dave Maurer, the Prescott Chamber.  She added that Mike King has just done a chapter on the Prescott National Forest for the County publication. 

Burgess continued that she plans to prepare a guideline for authors which will explain the need for two separate products:  first, a 1500-word chapter for a potential book, with no guarantees that the book will be published, to include photos, illustrations, maps, etc., and second, a 750-word column with one illustration for the Courier’s special “Days Past: Prescott Where It All Began” column. The topics for the two items would be the same, but they would be two separate products. Burgess’ author’s guidelines will include instructions on how items are to be scanned and submitted.


Burgess asked for any suggestions that Committee members might have regarding changing the topics and asked that they be submitted to her by the end of the month. She noted that if something were to be added, consideration would have to be given to what would be deleted. Ruffner said that she would forward some suggestions to Burgess.  Burgess stated that the final list of topics will be submitted to Committee members electronically

Gilliss added that articles will be presented in the book in chronological order insofar as possible.  She stressed that Burgess wants to have the chapter topics finalized within the coming month.  Burgess noted that some chapters may be eliminated if no author can be found to write them.  Gilliss asked if writing instructors at the colleges were being invited to submit items, and Burgess responded that school is not in session at this time.

Burgess reported that Andy Wallace, Jim Pool, Ray Newton and herself will review all writing and will edit to some extent, with the intention of preserving each author’s “voice” so chapters will not sound as though they were all written by the same person. 

Burgess encouraged Committee members to give her names and contact information for any writers they know who may have an interest in contributing to the book. She clarified that articles would begin in the Courier in September 2011, with the Centennial kickoff, and that the book would be available in February 2012. She emphasized that all articles will need to be completed and in proper order before beginning publishing. 


Gilliss noted that this project was mounted in response to the City Resolution requiring the Committee to develop a City Legacy Project, and that it must be approved by the Arizona Historical Advisory Commission in order to be identified as such. She reported that she has attempted unsuccessfully to find out if the application submitted by Burgess some time ago will be on the agenda for AHAC’s quarterly meeting. Burgess said that the application has been received and is in the queue for approval.  She added that, according to information she has received from others who have submitted Legacy Project applications, those requiring rewriting or revisions are sent back before they are placed on the agenda. Not having had the Prescott application returned is likely a good sign.



2.  
Funding



Chairman Gilliss reported that she recently met with the Mayor and City Manager and that she reminded Mr. Norwood of the Council’s mandate to develop a Legacy Project.  She said she reported on the direction and progress of the book project and stated a need for between $8,000 and $10,000 to mount the project.  Mr. Norwood responded that he would find the money. Burgess said that that amount would probably cover the first run of the book and that, as books are sold, the money could go back into reprinting.



C.  
Local Projects (Bell)




1.  
Prescott POPS



Gilliss reported that she has had a number of people tell her they have projects in the works. For example, the POPS Symphony Orchestra director told her recently that they have scheduled a Centennial celebration concert for Sunday, February 12, 2012. In addition, the Masons are interested in erecting a historic monument of some type, and Mike King with Sunup Rotary is anticipating uniting with the other Rotarian groups to mount a Centennial project. Gilliss concluded that groups in the community are beginning to think about participation in the Centennial. 



Burgess suggested that the Masons might consider purchasing a historic marker that would match those the City has been erecting.



2.  
Volunteer Support




No report.


3. Thumb Butte Festival/Best of AZ Update (Thurston)




 

 

Thurston reported that plans for the Festival are being developed quickly and that those involved are excited about it.  She circulated the draft of a press release intended to inform Committee member about the Festival activities. She noted that the three major museums will be participating as well and the Elks Opera House, Prescott Fine Arts, and other art and performing organizations.

Thurston continued that Karen Churchard is in accord with Thumb Butte Festival plans, particularly because it will bring together the old and the new in many ways; it doesn’t focus on any single aspect of the culture of the community; and it is still growing and developing, which makes it easier for AZCC to help shape it to meet state expectation for next year’s Best of Arizona Festival.  

Thurston noted that this year’s festival will be a sort of “dress rehearsal” for next year’s Centennial kick-off and that the state’s event planner will be attending Thumb Butte Festival planning meetings. She added that that Churchard had never been to the Sharlot Hall Museum or heard of Tsunami on the Square and that the state group was unaware of and pleased about the talent already existing in Prescott.

Thurston continued that Churchard asked about the ability to close off downtown streets during the Best of AZ Festival. Gilliss noted that she mentioned that inquiry to Norwood at their meeting and that he did not say no. She continued that, in response to Churchard’s suggestion, Ann Sterling had complied with a request to provide the state group with a county aerial map of the downtown area which they can use as they visit this year’s festival to attempt to identify a footprint for the 2011 celebration as well as major parking areas  It is intended that shuttle transportation of some type  will be utilized as well.

Gilliss reported that it had come to the Festival Committee’s attention that the Friday of the Best of AZ event, September 16, 2011, would be a working day for the courts and therefore the Plaza would not be readily available for event use, which could preclude the Centennial Stamp unveiling from taking place on the Plaza that day. She continued that she and Ruffner had determined that, if the unveiling of the stamp occurs as originally planned for that day on the Plaza, they would seek permission from Presiding Judge Brutinel for use of the Plaza during the court’s lunch recess from 11:30 am to 1:30 pm. Retired Judge, Ann Sterling, chair of the County Centennial Committee, has agreed to assist in that effort.


 Should the USPS agree to the date and the stamp unveiling in Prescott, Ruffner agreed to work with Ann Sterling and Frank Sente to plan and carry out the event, and to relieve Thurston from having responsibility for that part of the Best of Arizona festivities. 

Madden asked if any consideration had been given to having the stamp unveiling at the Sharlot Hall Museum, and Gilliss responded that it had not been discussed but that it was a good idea.  Burgess suggested that the ceremony could be held in from of the Territorial Governor’s Mansion.  Gilliss agreed to present that idea to Sterling. 


Lopas added that, in a conversation with Churchard’s Assistant, Mandi Wimmer, the idea of closing off Goodwin would provide for easy connectivity between downtown and Sharlot Hall Museum.   



D. 
Media/Promotions (Thurston)




1.  
Logo Registration and Use; City Council



Gilliss reported that the application for registration of the new City Centennial logo had been on City Attorney Garry Kidd’s desk for some time, but that Burke has taken it over and it should be completed and submitted soon. It was agreed that the new logo design did not need to go back to Council for approval.



2.  
County Web Site [Att-IV.D.2]


Gilliss said that the County’s website has some fun activities and that she would like to see a City Centennial site up and running soon, and to include on it a link to the County’s site. She asked for suggestions on information that could be posted on a City site that would be of interest to the public. Burgess suggested that the book project could be featured, and Thurston said that when the press release draft was completed, it could also be posted. 



Gilliss stated that she would still like to see the Committee have its own website, separate from the City’s, and Lopas said that a separate web site could be developed, but that the City did not have the staff to maintain it. Thurston said that the Media/Promotion Group is supposed to be responsible for a web site, but that the group has not been meeting.  Maurer stated that the Prescott Chamber has several web designers as members and that perhaps the Chamber could ask for the donation of a web-master’s time to develop and manage a City Centennial site.  He said he would check with chamber members who might be willing to help.



3.  
Social Media/Facebook Update


A brief discussion was held on the committee’s Facebook page. Thurston reported that it is set up so that only administrators can post on it, however Gilliss said she has seen several references on the site inviting people to post for various reasons.  She continued to describe several aspects of the site which suggested to her that it is not currently a satisfactory resource for Centennial information.  She suggested that the site be disabled until it can be better planned and monitored. Thurston said that she would check with Mary Lin who had developed the site, to see if she would disable it or if Thurston could to it herself.



4.  
Radio/TV Appearances



Gilliss suggested that it would be a good time to engage in radio and TV appearances to stimulate community interest in participating in the Centennial.  After brief discussion Gilliss agreed to contact local stations to schedule appearances.


Gilliss reported that Churchard would forward state guidelines on merchandising to the Committee as soon as they were complete.   Lopas offered to follow up with Dawn Foster regarding any City policies.


E.  
Executive Committee (Gilliss)




1.  
AZCC Summit Meetings


Gilliss reported that the Summit Meeting scheduled for Flagstaff had been cancelled due to the forest fire. It will be rescheduled for sometime in September. Meantime, there will be a Summit Meeting in Tucson in August.




2.  
Potential Sponsors (Bell)




No report.




3.  
Meeting with Mayor and City Manager, and



4.  
Centennial Committee Role


Gilliss reported that during her meeting with the Mayor and City Manager, they also agreed on the need to discuss the relationship of the Centennial Committee to the newly-established City Department of Tourism.  She continued that she suggested that the Tourism Department should take the lead in planning and carrying out the City Centennial Celebration as the City has the staff, resources, and decision-making power to conduct it.  She said that Norwood responded that the idea made sense because it is “all tourism.” and the Mayor indicated that he thought it was a good idea. 


Gilliss continued that she had also chatted with Don Prince at his Meet-and-Greet event about such a shift.  He has served previously as Deputy Director of the State Office of Tourism, which she sees as a perfect tie-in with the City Centennial, since the OOT is directing Centennial Activities.  She also learned that he knows Karen Churchard, although he didn’t work with her. Gilliss  reported that she called to the attention of Mr. Prince and Mayor Kuykendall that the City Centennial Committee, having been working on the Centennial for some time, could serve as an excellent support group for Department of Tourism as it directed Centennial activities, to which they seemed to agree.


Ruffner stated that City decision-makers must remember that Prescott is supported by residents who sometimes feel displaced by tourism; they do not want it to destroy what they have.  Gilliss agreed, adding that she has recently read the book, “Civic Tourism” written by local author Dan Shilling and published by Sharlot Hall Museum Press, which addresses those issues. She said that she delivered the two-page introduction to the book to the Mayor suggesting that he might  be interested in reading the entire book and that she had a dozen copies of it set aside in her name at Sharlot Hall Museum to be available to the City.  Ruffner noted that the book is achieving national attention and that Shilling is currently making presentations on its contents all over the country.

V.  
Ad Hoc Group Reports



A.  
Stamp Group



Gilliss reported that she had met David Smucker, new Superintendent for Prescott Unified School District, and chatted with him about the Centennial Stamp project being planned for County-wide schools, including PUSD.  She said that he was very interested and supportive.


Gillis continued that she had learned that Frank Sente is willing to assist with the stamp unveiling but was no longer planning to be part of the school portion of the project.  Ruffner clarified that Sente does not intend to be part of the school project committee, but that his is writing an application to the Arizona Historic Advisory Commission for a Legacy Project and to the State Centennial Commission to be have the unveiling recognized as a Special Event, and he will assist with development of a curriculum packet for the school project.  Gilliss expressed her gratitude for Sente’s willingness to continue participation in the Stamp events


B.  
Other

Ruffner reported that she was working with Frank Sente on a Special Event for the 107th anniversary of the Elks Opera House in February 2012.



Thurston reported that Bob Booker from the Arizona Commission on the Arts would be attending a PAAHC membership event on September 1 at 5:30 pm at the Smoki Museum, to speak on the subject of Cultural Tourism.


VI.  
Advisory Member Comments


No Advisory Members were present.

VII.  
Adjournment



There being no further business, the regular meeting of the Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee of July 19, 2010, adjourned at 2:44 p.m.









________________________________ 









DR. BARBARA GILLISS, Chairman


ATTEST:


__________________________________ 


ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk



CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF NOTICE


 


The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Prescott City Hall on                                __________________, at               ____.m. in accordance with the statement filed by the Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee with the City Clerk.





_____________________________________


Elizabeth A. Burke, MMC, City Clerk





 








_1350383659.unknown



